M. David C. Waddel

Director, Pipelines and Term nal s
CENEX, I nc.

P. O Box 909

803 H ghway, 212 South

Laurel, Montana 59044

RE: CPF No. 54514
Dear M. Waddel |l :

Encl osed is the Final Order issued by the Associate

Adm nistrator for Pipeline Safety in the above-referenced case.
It makes findings of violation, withdraws a portion of a

vi ol ation, assesses a civil penalty of $29,500, and requires
certain corrective action and revision of certain anti-drug
manual procedures. The penalty paynent terns are set forth in
the Final Order. Your receipt of the Final Order constitutes
service of that document under 49 CF. R § 190.5.

Si ncerely,

Gaendolyn M Hi I |
Pi pel i ne Conpliance Registry
Ofice of Pipeline Safety

Encl osure

CERTI FI ED MAIL - RETURN RECEI PT REQUESTED




DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATI ON
RESEARCH AND SPECI AL PROGRAMS ADM NI STRATI ON
OFFI CE OF PI PELI NE SAFETY
WASHI NGTON, D. C. 20590

In the Matter of )
)
CENEX, Inc., ) CPF No. 54514
)
Respondent . )
)
Fl NAL ORDER

On August 29 - Cctober 1, 1994, pursuant to 49 U S. C. 8§ 60117,
a representative of the Ofice of Pipeline Safety (OPS)
conducted an on-site pipeline safety inspection of Respondent's
facilities and records in Laurel, Billings, and Mles City,
Montana. As a result of the inspection, the Director, Wstern
Regi on, OPS, issued to Respondent, by letter dated Decenber 23,
1994, a Notice of Probable Violation, Proposed Cvil Penalty,
Proposed Conpliance Order, Notice of Amendnent and Warning
(Notice). 1In accordance with 49 CF. R 8§ 190.207, the Notice
proposed finding that Respondent had violated 49 C F. R

88 195.401(b), 195.402, and 195.428, proposed assessing civil
penalties totaling $39,000 for the alleged violations of Itens
1 and 4, and proposed that Respondent take certain neasures to
correct the alleged violation in Item2. The Notice proposed,
in accordance with 49 C F. R 8 190.237, that Respondent anend
its procedures for its anti-drug plan. The Notice al so warned
Respondent to take appropriate corrective action, wth respect
to Item 3.

Respondent responded to the Notice by letter dated January 24,
1995 (Response). Respondent contested the allegations for
Items 1, 2 and 5, and offered information to explain the

al | egati ons.

Respondent al so proposed a conprom se offer of $1,600 for |tem
4. Respondent has not requested a hearing and therefore, has
wai ved its right to one.



FI NDI NGS OF VI OLATI ON

ltem 1

The Notice alleged as Item 1 that Respondent violated 49 C. F.R
8 195.401(b) for failing to correct an adverse safety condition
within a reasonable tinme. The Notice alleged three safety
conditions: (a) 15 | ow pipe-to-soil readings; (b) 7 shorted
casings; and (c) 3 anonalies identified in 1985 and 1990 snart
pig runs.

(a) Low pipe-to-soil readings

Respondent’ s pi pe-to-soil readings on its Laurel to d endive
I'ine:

Cat hodi ¢

St ations 1990 1991 1992 1993
CP 71 -.770 -.880 -.789 -.783*
CP 79 -.796 -.988 -.781 -. 746*
CP 80 -.743 -.998 -. 762 -, 752*
CP 81 ---- -.983 -. 801 -. 775*
CP 82 -. 750 -. 965 -. 775 -. 775*
CP 155 BV -. 650 -. 800* -, 724* -. 700*
CP 158 -. 417 Di sbonded* -. 494* -1.104
CP 159 -.521 Di sbonded* -.576* -1.262
CP 175 -.738 -. 947 -. 830 -.627*
CP 177 .- .- -. 827 - . 849*
CP 187 -.414 Di sbonded* -1.397 -1. 447

*

indicates a violation for not correcting | ow pi pe-to-soi
potentials within an inspection cycle.

Respondent stated in its Response that it had taken appropriate
and tinely corrective action with respect to the above | ow

pi pe-to-soil readings, and expl ained those actions taken.
Respondent further stated that it had recei ved no gui dance from
OPS on appropriate tinme frames for correction, and wth the
exception of CP 155 BV, "adequate renedy has been, or will have
been provided at all of the listed areas within one inspection
cycle followng the confirmation cycle." Respondent then
proposed no civil penalty be assessed due to the "inherent
uncertainty and variability of the test nethod" and the
arbitrary criteria of -.85 nmv for judging adequate cathodic
protection. (Response, p.2)



Adverse conditions should be corrected as soon as possible, and
no | ater than the next inspection cycle. In this case, the

i nspection cycle is one year. Respondent took anywhere from
two to four inspection cycles to correct the aforenentioned
adverse safety conditions. This is an unacceptable |ength of
time for corrective action. Furthernore, the -0.85 nv
criterion is widely accepted in the pipeline industry as an

i ndi cati on of adequate cathodic protection, as are the standard
testing nethodologies. A finding of a | ow pipe-to-soil reading
is serious in nature. Left in this condition, the integrity of
the pipeline is in question and could pose a serious threat to
persons, property and/or the environnment. Accordingly, | find
respondent in violation of 49 C.F. R § 195.401(b).

(b) Casings shorted to the carrier pipe

Respondent’ s shorted casi ngs:
- Billings Tank Farm
- Ponmpeys @ Hwy. Exit
- Ponmpeys @ Hwy. (ol d)
- E. BV-52 @RR Xsng
- MP. 54.5 @RR
- MP. 77
- M P. 233 @ Freeway

Respondent stated in its Response that each of the problens
associated wth the above casings dealt primarily with their

i naccessibility. Respondent further stated that it has used
the line-a-log as a nonitoring tool in 1990, which did not
reveal corrosion at the above casing | ocations. Respondent
asserted that its nonitoring has been adequate in the past and
proposed no violation or civil penalty associated with the
shorted casi ngs. (Response, pp. 2-3)

Al t hough OPS guidelines on shorted casings were not issued
until shortly before the OPS inspection of Respondent’s
facility, Respondent should have know that four years was too
long to allow the condition to persist. Shorted casings are
clearly a condition that could adversely affect the safe
operation of the pipeline system Respondent’s Cathodic
Protection Surveys for the years 1990, 1991, 1992 and 1993,

i ndicate that the above casings were shorted. The |ack of
corrosion in 1990 does not guarantee that no corrosion wl|
develop in the years to follow. The uncertainty associ ated
wi th shorted casings poses too great a risk when dealing with
areas that are traversed daily by the public. Accordingly, |
find Respondent in violation of 49 C F. R 8 195.401(b).



(c) Anomalies identified by smart pig runs in 1985 and 1990

Respondent stated in its Response that the 1990 test results
have been "shown to substantially exaggerate the nagnitude of
wal | thickness | osses” and thus cannot be relied on.
Respondent also indicated that it outlined its position and

i ntended actions in letters dated Cctober 31, 1994 and
Decenber 5, 1994.

Respondent first found the anomalies during its 1985 smart pig
run. As stated above (see (a)), these conditions should have
been corrected wthin the next inspection cycle. However, it
t ook Respondent 9 years to outline its intended course of
action with respect to these anomalies. N ne years is too
long to correct a condition that could adversely affect the
safe operation of a pipeline system

Wth respect to the third anomaly, #1244932, Respondent
indicated to the OPS inspector that it designated the anomaly
as a tap in 1985 which appeared unchanged in 1990. Based on
the formof the indication and Respondent’s visual experiences
with the | ogs, Respondent concluded that the anomaly was a tap.

It is not the purpose of OPS to direct how an operator
interprets data, as long as the data is interpreted in a safety
consci ous, conservative manner. The evidence in this case does
not suggest an inproper interpretation. However, Respondent is
rem nded that it should make its interpretations in a
conservative manner, always keeping the safety of the public,
property and the environment, in mnd. Therefore, this sub-
portion, related to the third anomaly, w il be w thdrawn.

Accordi ngly, based on the above analysis, | find that
Respondent violated 49 C.F. R 8 195.401(b). This finding of
violation will be considered a prior offense in any subsequent
enforcenment action taken agai nst Respondent.

ltem 2

The Notice alleged as Item 2, that Respondent viol ated

49 C.F.R § 195.402 by failing to maintain adequate procedures
for operations, maintenance and energencies. The Notice

al | eged that Respondent did not have procedures for: (a)
remedi al action to correct cathodic protection deficiencies;
(b) nonitoring pipeline casings for electrical isolation; and
(c) inspecting thermal relief devices.



Wth respect to (a) and (b) above, Respondent stated that

al though it did not include witten procedures in its manual,
it has taken a systematic approach toward correcting
deficiencies/nonitoring, which it believes has been effective.
Wth respect to (c) above, Respondent stated that its manual
does contain procedures for inspecting and testing pressure
limting devices however, it was not previously aware that

| ow pressure pop-off valves for thermal pressure on shut-in

| ow- pressure |lines were considered pressure limting devices.
Furthernmore, with respect to (a), (b) and (c), Respondent
stated that witten procedures for each of these itens is not
specifically called for in the regul ations. (Response, p.4)

Section 195.402 states that "each operator shall prepare and

follow. . . a manual of witten procedures for conducting
normal operations and mai ntenance activities and handl i ng
abnormal operations and energencies."” Cearly, Respondent has

acknow edged, the above nentioned itens are itens that are
conducted during normal operations and mai ntenance activities
or in handling abnormal conditions. Therefore, section 195.402
requires witten procedures for each of these itens.

The failure to maintain conplete and accurate witten
procedures increases the |ikelihood of not adequately

mai ntai ning the pipeline or inproperly handling conditions that
occur. Accordingly, based on the above discussion, | find that
Respondent violated 49 C.F.R 8 195.402. This finding of
violation will be considered a prior offense in any subsequent
enforcenment action taken agai nst Respondent.

ltem 4

The Notice alleged as Item 4, that Respondent viol ated

49 C. F.R 8 195.428(a) because it could not provide records of
overpressure protection inspection for the years of 1992 and
1993 for 25 devices. Respondent stated that "its policy is to
i nspect/test these devices within the schedules identified in
the regul ations.” However, Respondent added that it could not
find any docunentation for these inspections. Respondent
further stated that 14 of the 25 devices are not exposed to
pressures over 300 psi, therefore, it did not believe that

t hese devices were subject to this regulatory provision
(Response, pp. 4-5)

Regardl ess of the pressure the device is exposed to, 49 C F.R
8 195.416 requires all overpressure safety devices to be

i nspected. Low pressure pop-off valves relieve thernmal
pressure build-up on shut-in pipelines and therefore function
as pressure limting/overpressure safety devices. I|nspection



of these safety devices provides the operator with the
necessary information to determne if the device is performng
correctly. Failure to do so could adversely affect the safety
of the pipeline. Accordingly, based on the above di scussion,
find that Respondent violated 49 CF. R 8§ 195.428(a). This
finding of violation will be considered a prior offense in any
subsequent enforcenment action taken agai nst Respondent.

ASSESSMENT OF PENALTY

Under 49 U S.C. 8§ 60122, Respondent is subject to a civil
penalty not to exceed $25,000 per violation for each day of the
violation up to a maxi mum of $500, 000 for any related series of
vi ol ati ons.

49 U.S.C. § 60122 and 49 CF.R 8§ 190.225 require that, in
determ ning the amount of the civil penalty, | consider the
followng criteria: nature, circunstances, and gravity of the
vi ol ation, degree of Respondent's cul pability, history of
Respondent's prior offenses, Respondent's ability to pay the
penalty, good faith by Respondent in attenpting to achieve
conpliance, the effect on Respondent's ability to continue in
busi ness, and such other matters as justice may require.

The Notice proposed assessing a civil penalty of $14,000! for
Item 1, violation of 49 CF. R 8 195.401(b). Respondent’s
failure to correct adverse safety conditions within a
reasonabl e amount of tinme has caused the integrity of the
pipeline to be in question and could pose a serious threat to
persons, property or the environnment. However, based on the
prior discussion of Item1, part (c), one of the three itens
identified is being withdrawn. Therefore, the penalty for Item
1 will be reduced by $1,000. Accordingly, having reviewed the
record and considered the assessnent criteria, | assess
Respondent a civil penalty of $13,000 for Item 1.

The Notice proposed assessing a civil penalty of $25,000 for
Item 4, violation of 49 CF. R § 195.428. This violation is
very serious. Overpressure safety devices are designed to

The $14, 000 proposed violation was determned in the
fol | om ng manner:

- $7,500, $500 for each of the 15 | ow pi pe-to-soi

r eadi ngs;
- $3, 500, $500 for each of the 7 shorted casings; and
- $3, 000, $1,000 for each of the 3 anonali es.



mai ntain the pipeline in a safe condition when overpressuriza-
tion occurs that could pose a threat to the integrity of the

pi peline. Respondent’s failure to inspect those safety devices
coul d adversely affect the safe operation of the pipeline
system and could have resulted in a pipeline failure,
endangeri ng persons, property and/or the environnent.

The Notice identified 25 | ocations where Respondent failed to

i nspect its overpressure safety devices for two years, thus

m ssing 50 overpressure safety inspections. Respondent stated
that 14 of the 25 devices, corresponding to 34 inspections,

are not exposed to pressures over 300 psi. Due to the reduced
pressures associated with 14 of the devices, the gravity of the
m ssed inspections is less than that for the remaining 11
devices. The Notice proposed assessing a $500 penalty for each
of the 50 m ssed inspections. Based on the the circunstances
and gravity of the violation, | assess Respondent a civil
penalty of $8,500 ($250 per missed inspection) for those 14
devi ces/ 34 mi ssed inspections and $8, 000 ($500 per m ssed

i nspection) for the remaining 11 devices/ 16 m ssed inspections.
Thus, the civil penalty for Item 4 has been reduced from
$25,000 to $16,500. The total assessment for both violations
(ltems 1 and 4) is now $29, 500.

Payment of the civil penalty nust be made within 20 days of
service. Federal regulations (49 CF. R 8§ 89.21(b)(3)) require
this paynent be nmade by wire transfer, through the Federal
Reserve Commruni cations System (Fedwire), to the account of the
U S Treasury. Detailed instructions are contained in the

encl osure. After conpleting the wire transfer, send a copy of
the electronic funds transfer receipt to the Ofice of the
Chi ef Counsel (DCC-1), Research and Speci al Prograns

Adm ni stration, Room 8405, U. S. Departnent of Transportation,
400 Seventh Street, S.W, Washington, D.C. 20590-0001.

Questions concerning wire transfers should be directed to:

Val eri a Dungee, Federal Aviation Adm nistration, M ke Monroney
Aeronautical Center, Financial Operations Division (AMZ-320),
P. O Box 25770, Cklahoma GCity, OK 73125; (405) 954-4719.

Failure to pay the $29,500 civil penalty will result in accrual
of interest at the current annual rate in accordance with 31
USC 8 3717, 4 CF.R 8§ 102.13 and 49 C F.R § 89.23.
Pursuant to those sanme authorities, a late penalty charge of



six percent (6% per annumw || be charged if paynment is not
made within 110 days of service. Furthernore, failure to pay
the civil penalty may result in referral of the matter to the
Attorney Ceneral for appropriate action in an United States
District Court.

COVPLI ANCE ORDER

Under 49 U. S.C. § 60118(a), each person who engages in the
transportati on of hazardous |iquids or who owns or operates a
pipeline facility is required to conply with the applicable
safety standards established under chapter 601. Pursuant to
the authority of 49 U. S.C. 8 60118(b) and 49 C F.R 8§ 190. 217,
Respondent is hereby ordered to take the following actions to
ensure conpliance with the pipeline safety regul ations
applicable to its operations.

1. Establi sh procedures as required by 49 C F.R § 195.402(a)
for renmedial action, in accordance with 49 C. F.R
8§ 195.401(b).

2. Establi sh procedures as required by 49 C F.R § 195.402(a)
wWth regards to shorted casings, in accordance with
49 C.F.R 8§ 195.416(a), including the follow ng:

a. for the nonitoring of casing potentials to detect the
presence of shorts (nonitor on a cal endar year basis,
not to exceed 15 nonths);

b. for the determ nation of a course of action to
correct or negate the effects of casing shorts within
si x nont hs of discovery;

C. for verifying that a casing short exists;

d. for clearing of the short, if practicable (this nust
be consi dered before alternative neasures may be
used) ;

e. for filling the casing/pipe interstice with high

dielectric casing filler or other material which
provides a corrosion inhibiting environnment, if it is
inpractical to clear the short;

f. providing that if d and e above are determ ned to be
inpractical, nmonitoring the casing with | eak
detection equi pnent for | eakage at intervals not
exceeding 7.5 nonths, but at l|east tw ce each
cal endar year;



g. providing that if a leak is found by nonitoring
casings with | eak detection equipnent, immediate
corrective action to elimnate the | eak and further
corrosion; and

h. providing that in lieu of other corrective actions,
monitoring the condition of the carrier pipe using an
internal inspection device at specified intervals.

3. Establ i sh procedures as required by 49 C F. R
8 195.402(a), for consideration of "IR drop" in
determ ning the adequacy of a cathodically protected
system in accordance with 49 CF. R 8§ 195.416(a).

4. Establ i sh procedures as required by 49 C F. R
8§ 195.402(a), for inspection of thermal relief devices,
in accordance with 49 CF. R 8 195.428(a).

5. Submt the appropriate procedures to: Director, Wstern
Region, Ofice of Pipeline Safety, Research and Speci al
Progranms Adm ni stration, 12600 West Col fax Avenue, Suite
A250, Lakewood, Col orado 80215.

6. Acconplish these actions wthin 45 days foll ow ng receipt
of this Final Order. The Regional Director may grant an
extension of tinme for conpletion of the required action
upon receipt of a witten request stating the reasons for
t he extensi on.

AMENDMENT OF PROCEDURES

The Notice all eged i nadequaci es in Respondent's anti-drug
program manual and proposed to require anendnment of
Respondent's procedures to conply with the requirenents of
49 CF.R § 199.7.

After having reviewed the record, | find that Respondent's
procedures are inadequate to ensure safe operation of its
pi peline system Pursuant to 49 U S.C. §8 60108(a) and

49 C.F. R § 190. 237, Respondent is hereby ordered to nmake
the following changes to its procedures.

1. As related to §8 199.3, the definition of an accident in
your anti-drug program does not provide an adequate
definition. Your definition should specify what
constitutes an "accident” in accordance with 8§ 195.50.
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2. As related to 8 199.11(b), (requirenents for post-accident
testing) your anti-drug program Drug Testing (4) does not
provi de an adequate procedure for stating the maxi mumtinme
limt for testing an "enpl oyee" whose performance either
contributed to an accident or could not be conpletely
di scounted as a contributing factor to an accident. Your
procedure should specify 32 hours is the maxi mumtine
limt for testing an "enployee" in conjunction wth post-
acci dent testing.

3. As related to 8§ 199.11(e), requirenents for return-to-duty
testing, your anti-drug program Disqualification/
Rehabilitation/ D scipline of Enpl oyees (1) does not
specify the maxi mnum |l ength of tinme which an enpl oyee may
be tested. Your procedure should specify that an enpl oyee
is subject to up to 60 nonths of return-to-duty drug
testing.

4. As related to 8§ 199.17(d), requirenents for retention of
sanpl es and retesting, you anti-drug program Retesting,
does not specify retest detection [imts criteria. Your
procedure should specify that when retesting a sanple,
since sone anal ytes may deteriorate during storage,
detected levels of the drug below the detection limts
established in the DOT procedures, but equal to or greater
than the established sensitivity of the assay, nust be
reported and consi dered corroborative of the original
positive results.

5. Submt the appropriate procedures to: Director, Wstern
Region, O fice of Pipeline Safety, Research and Speci al
Progranms Adm ni stration, 12600 West Col fax Avenue, Suite
A250, Lakewood, Col orado 80215.

6. Acconplish these actions wthin 45 days foll ow ng receipt
of this Final Oder. The Regional Director may grant an
extension of time for conpletion of the required action
upon receipt of a witten request stating the reasons for
t he extensi on.

WARNI NG | TEMS

The Notice did not propose any penalty for Item 3; therefore,
Respondent is warned that should it not take appropriate
corrective action and a violation should cone to the attention
of OPS in a subsequent inspection, enforcenent action wll be
t aken.
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Under 49 C.F.R § 190. 215, Respondent has a right to petition
for reconsideration of this Final Order. The petition nust be
received within 20 days of Respondent's receipt of this Final
Order and nust contain a brief statenent of the issue(s). The
filing of the petition automatically stays the paynent of any
civil penalty assessed. All other terns of the order,

i ncluding any required corrective action, shall remain in ful

ef fect unless the Associate Adm nistrator, upon request, grants
a stay. The terns and conditions of this Final Oder are

ef fective upon receipt.

Failure to conply with any aspect of this Final Oder,

i ncludi ng the Arendnent, may result in the assessnent of civil
penal ties of up to $25,000 per violation per day, or in the
referral of the case for judicial enforcenent.

/s/ Ri chard B. Fel der

Ri chard B. Fel der
Associ ate Adm nistrator for Pipeline Safety

Dat e i ssued: 10/ 20/ 98




